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ALAN D. BERSIN
United states Attorney
PATRICK K. O'TOOLE
Assistant U.s. Attorney
California state Bar No. 082582
United states Courthouse
880 Front street
San Diego, California 92101-8800
Telephone: (619) 557-6085
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Attorneys for Plaintiff
United states of America

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, criminal Case No. 96-0347-B

Plaintiff,
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v. PLEA AGREEMENT

KURT W. DONSBACH (1),

Defendant.

IT IS HEREBY AGREED between the plaintiff, UNITED STATES OF

AMERICA, through its counsel, Alan D. Bersin, Uni ted States

Attorney, Patrick Statesand Assistant UnitedO'Toole,K.

Attorney, and the defendant, Kurt W. Donsbach, with the advice and

approval of Thomas J. Warwick, counsel for defendant, that the

terms of the plea agreement are as fqllows:

1. The defendant acknowledges ,that he has been charged in

Information 96-0347-B with a variety of criminal violations.

2. The defendant agrees "to plead guilty to: (~) Count 1

charging him with introducing un~ppr'ov~d drugs

in violation of Title 21~
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1 331(d), 333(a) (2) and 355; (2) Count 2 charging him with smugglingI

merchandise in violation of Title 18, united states Code, section2

3 545; and (3) Count 3 charging him with evading the payment of

4 taxes in violation of Title 26, United states Code, section 7201.
..~
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These charges and the consequences of his guilty plea3.

6 have been fully explained to Mr. Donsbach by his attorney.

7 The defendant understands that the ~ounts to whicn he is4.

8 pleading guilty carry the following maximum penalties:

9 (introducing unapproved' drugs in interstate(1) Count 1

commerce in violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 331(d), 333(a) (2), and 355)

- five (5) years in custody,up to three (3) years of supervised

release, a $250,000 fine, and a $50 penalty ~ssessment; (2) Count .. "

2 (s,muggling merchandisecontraryto law in violation of 18 U. S.C.

§ 545) - five (5) years in custody, up to three (3) years of

sUpervised release, a $250,000 fine, and a $5,0 penalty assessment;

and (3) Count 3 (tax evasion in violation of 26 U.,S.C.§ 7201) -
five (5) years in custody, up to a $250,000,£ine, up to three (3)

years of supervised release, and a $50 penalty assessment.

The defendant further understands that the counts to which he

is pleading guilty carry an aggregate maximum sentence of fifteen

(15) years ip custody, supervised release of up to nine (9) y~ars,
/$/J, ()O

a fine of up to $750,000,and penalty assessments of~.

AGREEMENTS AS TO SENTENCE
I

Subject to the contingencies set forth in .the AGREEM~NTS AS

TO CIVIL FORFEITURE" section, F-aragraph15, the parties agree as

follows:
..~
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1 The parties agree to recommend to the court that: (1)5.

2 defendant's base offense level be initially set at 6 pursuant to

3 united states Sentencing Guideline (hereinafter referred to as

4 "U.S.S.G. ") defendant, receive a 2 level upward§ 2N2.1; (2)

5 adjustment for more than minimal planning pursuant to U.S.S.G. §

6 2F1.1(b) (2); (3) defendant receive an aggravating role enhancement

of at least plus 2 and no more than .Rlus 4 for his role in the7

8 offenses pursuant to U.S.S.G. § 3B1.1(a); (4) defendant receive a

2 level upward adjustment for abuse of~position of trust pursuant

to (5) receive hisplus 2 fordefendantU.S.S.G. 3Bl. 3 ;

6. The united states will not oppose a three-level downward

adjustment for acceptance of responsibility pursuant to U.S.S.G.

3E1.1 if the defendant demonstrates a recognition and affirmative

acceptance of personal responsibility to both the probation office

and the government, and the probation off ice recommends this

adjustment in the Presentence Report.

7. The Government will recomrnent!:that the defendant receive

at lea~t a l-level downward adjustment for cooperation pursuant to

U.S.S.G. § 5K1.1 (subject to the conditions outlined in paragraphs

11-12 below) . Defendant DONS BACH 1s free to argue that his

cooperation should entitle him to more than minus 1 and that it is

worth up to Einus 5.

8. The parties ornot to, recommend upwardagree any

downward Guidelines adjustments other than those listed above.

3

,...

participation in fraudulently smuggling into the United states

pharmaceutical drugs that were misbranded or adulterated;

and (6) defendant receive plus 2 for his tax evasion.
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1 There is no agreement as to defendant's crimInal history category.

2 The parties further agree not to recommend a~y upward or downward

Guidelines departures, including any criminal history departures3

4 under § 4A1.3.

5 Based on the calculations outlined above, and assuming9.

6 that defendant is criminal History Category I, it is the parties

7 position that defendant's total offense level should be set at or

8 between 14 (14-21 months) and level 8 (0-6 months) .

9 exchange defendant pleading guilty, the10. In for

Government agrees to: (1) recommend no more than 18 months; (2)

bring no further criminal charges against the defendant for any

offenses related to the unlawful distribution of unapproved drugs, ,- "

the smuggling of goods contrary to law, or ~ny other tax evasion

or failure to file, from calendar year 1992 and before. If

defendant receives a custodial sentence and is otherwise eligible,

the Government agrees not to oppose placement in an urban work

camp.

COOPERATION

11. The defendant agrees to truthfully disclose any and all

information he has regarding past and present criminal activity.

12. The defendant will continue to make himself available at

all times by representativesreasonable of therequested
,."

Government, even after the entry of his plea. If requested, he

shall test.Lfy truthfully under oath in th~ grand jury and at

deposi tions, as well as at any.-trial. Defendant also agrees to

testify truthfully concerning all subj ects,

involvement about which he is questioned.

including his own

4



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

1 Should the Government elect to call defendant as a13.

2
. witness against any codefendants,and the defendant has not yet

3 been sentenced, the Government will not oppose defendant's request

4 to continue sentencing until after he testifies.

5 AGREEMENTS AS TO CIVIL FORFEITURE
...,

6 The defendant also agrees not to contest the forfeiture14.

7 of in: America no. 11550-12146accountBank offunds (1)

8 containing $97,262.43 (Hospital Santa Monica Services, Inc.); (2)

9 Wells Fargo bank account 0653-046524 containing $48,041.95 (Lenex

Laboratories-B); and (3) Home Savings b~nk account no. 133-950351-

6 containing $16,046.78 (Klas Goran Helge Asp). Defendant agrees

to obtain the necessary signatures, a~d do whatever is necessary)

if anything else is necessary, to complete the legal forfeiture of

these accounts.

15. There is $:um moneyadditional and checksofan

("money"), approximately $106,500, that has been seized by the

17 Government and not been forfeited. At the Government's election,

18 (1) the Government will either apply or have this money applied to

19 fully satisfy civil taxcompromise DONSBACH'Sdefendantand

20 liability for the years 1984 through 1992, provided defendant

21 submits a financial statement as is normally required to satisfy

and compromise civil tax liability claims, and this plea agreement

will remain in or (2) defendantre,spects;otherthe same

, DONSBACH'S civil tax liability will be handled separately and not

be affected by or included in this plea agreement; this money will

be forfeited to the Government and defendant agrees to obtain the

necessary signatures and do whatever is necessary to have the"
...,
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1 forfeited and the willGovernmentthe Government;money to

2 recommend a probationary sentence.

3 Defendant understands that the Double Jeopardy Clause16.

4 provides a constitutional right not to be prosecuted or punished

5 twice for the same offense. Defendant agrees that this right may

6 be waived. united states v. Sammaripa, 55 F.3d 443, 435, n.1 (9th".r

7 cir. 1995) . Defendant has conferred with defense couns~l and

8 hereby knowingly and voluntarily waives any rights he may have

9 under the Double Jeopardy Clause. Defendant agrees that he may be

prosecuted and convicted in this case even though his property has

been forfeited in a related administrative ;or civil forfeiture

proceeding and even if both proceedings or resulting "punishments"

are for the same conduct or offense. Defendant is hereby waiving

any Double Jeopardy challenges he may have to the charges in this

information based upon any pending or completed administrative or
';.~

civil forfeiture actions. Defendant also waives any rights under

the Double Jeopardy Clause to set aside any ciyil forfeiture order

or judgment or to otherwise collaterally at.tack any completed

forfeiture action arising out of his criminal activities.

ADDITIONAL TERMS

17. The defendant understands that the sentence and any fine

he will receive is ultimately the determination of the sentencing

judge pursuant t6 Fed~'R. Crim. P 11(e) (1)(B) and the Sentencing

Guidelines. The defendant further understands that the Government

cannot, and does not, make any- promise or representation as to

what sentence he will receive. Further the sentencing judge is

not bound J)y the recommendations of the parties and is free to

6
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